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1. Licensee/Location Inspected: 2. NRC/Regional Office

THD Design Group, Inc.

148 Chesterfield Industrial Boulevard Region Il .
Suite E U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Chesterfield. MO 63005 2443 Warrenville Road, Suite 210

Lisle, IL 60532-4352
Report Number(s) 2022001

3. Docket Number(s) 4. License Number(s) 5. Date(s) of Inspection
030-37320 24-32630-01 10/27/22 through 12/14/22
LICENSEE:

The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license as they relate to radiation safety and to compliance with the
Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license. The inspection consisted of selective

examinations of procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, and observations by the inspector. The inspection findings
are as follows:

1. Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified.

2. Previous violation(s) closed.
3
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. During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of NRC requirements, and
were assessed at Severity Level IV, in accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy.

A. The violation(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being cited because they were self-

identified, non-repetitive, corrective action was or is being taken, and the remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy
were satisfied.

(Non-cited violation(s) was/were discussed involving the following requirement(s)

B. The following violation(s) is/are being cited in accordance with NRC Enforcement Policy. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION,
which may be subject to posting in accordance with 10 CFR 19.11.
(Violations and Corrective Actions)

License Condition 19.A requires the licensee, in part, to conduct its program in accordance with the
statements, representations, and procedures contained in the licensee's renewal application dated August
25, 2016. In section 10.4 of the application, the licensee committed, in part, to providing and requiring the use
of individual monitoring devices (dosimetry).

(continued on Page 2)

Statement of Corrective Actions

| hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the Inspector will be taken to correct the violations identified. This statement of corrective
actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective steps which will be taken, date when full
compliance will be achieved). | understand that no further written response to NRC will be required, unless specifically requested.

-
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Materials Inspection Report (Continued)

(continued from Page 1)

Contrary to the above, from December 2019 until November 14, 2022, the licensee failed to provide individual
monitoring devices to its employees. Specifically, the licensee ceased acquiring dosimetry in December 2019. The
cause of the violation was the Radiation Safety Officer's (RSO) failure to realize that dosimetry was not optional
based on the licensee's license renewal application commitment. As corrective action, the licensee acquired and
provided dosimetry on November 14, 2022, and the RSO committed to amending the license if the licensee decides
to cease the use of dosimetry in the future.
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Materials Inspection Record

1. Licensee Name: 2. Docket Number(s): 3. License Number(s)
THD Design Group, Inc. 030-37320 24-32630-01

4. Report Number(s): 5. Date(s) of Inspection:

2022001 10/27/22, with in-office review through 12/14/22

6. Inspector(s): 7. Program Code(s): 8. Priority: | 9. Inspection Guidance Used:
Jason Draper 03121 5 IP 87139

10. Licensee Contact Name(s): 11. Licensee E-mail Address: 12. Licensee Telephone Number(s):

Robert Sudholt, RSO bob@thddesigngroup.com (636) 733-6729

13. Inspection Type: [] mitial 14. Locations Inspected: | | Hybrid 15. Next Inspection Date (MM/DD/YYYY):

Routine [ ] Announced Main Office [ ] Field Office 10/27/2027 Normal [ | Extended
[ ] Non-Routine Unannounced |[ | Temporary Job Site | | Remote [ ] Reduced [ | Nochange

16. Location(s) Inspected List:

Main Office - 148E Chesterfield Industrial Boulevard, Chesterfield, MO

17. Scope and Observations:

This was an inspection of an engineering and surveying company authorized to possess and use up to three
Humboldt Scientific, Inc. Model 5001 Series and one Troxler Model 3440 portable moisture density gauges for soil
engineering projects. At the time of the inspection, the licensee possessed two Humboldt Model 5001 gauges and
employed two authorized gauge users who used the gauges weekly throughout the construction season. The
licensee used a licensed gauge service provider for maintenance, calibration, and leak testing of the gauges, and the
RSO performed radiation safety program review meetings annually.

During the inspection, the inspector toured the licensee's facility to verify the gauges were secured appropriately with
two barriers and took radiation surveys to verify appropriate postings. Since no gauges were being used during the
inspection, the inspector interviewed the RSO regarding the use and transportation of gauges. The inspector
reviewed a selection of records including the utilization logs, dosimetry records, leak tests, training records, and
periodic radiation safety program reviews.

Through this review, the inspector identified that as of December 2019, the licensee ceased acquiring dosimetry for
its gauge users contrary to Condition 19 of their license through the licensee's commitments in its renewal
application dated August 25, 2016. The RSO stated that he was aware that other portable gauge licensees were not
required to provide dosimetry and did not realize that THD had committed to providing dosimetry in its license
renewal application. As corrective action, the licensee acquired and provided dosimetry on November 14, 2022, and
the RSO committed to amending the license if the licensee decides to cease the use of dosimetry in the future.

During the previous routine inspection in 2017 (IR 2017001), a violation was identified for the licensee's failure to
confine its possession and use of material to the locations authorized on the license, when the licensee relocated its
gauges to a new facility prior to receiving NRC approval. The inspector reviewed the licensee's corrective actions,
which included amending the license to authorize the new location and committing to receiving approval for new
storage locations prior to storing gauges there. The inspector identified that since the last inspection, the licensee did
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Materials Inspection Record (Continued)

U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

not store gauges at any facilities other than the tacilities authorized on the license. This violation is closed.

One violation of NRC requirements was identified as a result of this inspection.

Signature and Date - Branch Chief

Digitally signed by Rhex A. Edwards
Date: 2022.12.30 07:22:48 -06'00'
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